
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Community 
Services 
Scrutiny 
Committee 

Date: Friday, 24th March, 2006 

Time: 10.00 a.m. 

Place: 
The Burton Hotel, Mill Street, 
Kington, Herefordshire 

Notes: Please note the time, date and venue of 
the meeting. 

For any further information please contact: 

Craig Goodall, Members Services, 
Tel/Fax:01432 260445 

email - cgoodall@herefordshire.gov.uk 

  
 
County of Herefordshire 
District Council 





COUNTY OF HEREFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 24TH MARCH, 2006 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
for the Meeting of the Community Services 
Scrutiny Committee 

 
To:       Councillor 

Councillor 
 

 
A.C.R. Chappell (Chairman) 
H. Bramer (Vice-Chairman) 

Councillors R.B.A. Burke, M.R. Cunningham, Mrs. S.P.A. Daniels, 
J.G.S. Guthrie, B. Hunt, D.C. Taylor, P.G. Turpin and 
A.L. Williams 

  
Co-opted Members Ms. C. Jones (Chamber of Commerce), G. Jones (Tourism 

Sector), Mrs. E. Newman (Herefordshire Association of 
Local Councils) and Mr. P. Thomas (Herefordshire NFU) 

  

  

  

 Pages 

  
   
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE     
   
 To receive apologies for absence.  
   
2. NAMED SUBSTITUTES     
   
 To receive any details of Members nominated to attend the meeting in 

place of a Member of the Committee. 
 

   
3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST     
   
 To receive any declarations of interest by Members in respect of items on 

the Agenda. 
 

   
4. MINUTES   1 - 18  
   
 To approve and sign the Minutes of the meeting held on 11th January 2006 

and reconvened on 13th January 2006. 
 

   
5. SUGGESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC ON ISSUES FOR 

FUTURE SCRUTINY   
  

   
 To consider suggestions from members of the public on issues the 

Committee could scrutinise in the future. 
 

   
6. HALO LEISURE SERVICES LTD     
   
 To receive a presentation from Jon Argent, Chief Executive of HALO 

Leisure Services Ltd. 
 

   
7. COMMUNITY YOUTH SERVICE PARTNERSHIP ARRANGEMENTS 

WITH THE VOLUNTARY AND COMMUNITY YOUTH SECTOR   
19 - 22  

   
 To inform Members of the working relationship with the voluntary and 

community youth work sector and Herefordshire Council Youth Service.  
 
 

 

   



 

8. REFURBISHMENT OF KINGTON LIBRARY   23 - 24  
   
 To update Members on the progress being made in the refurbishment of 

Kington Library. 
 

 

   
9. COMMUNITY SERVICES PERFORMANCE MONITORING   25 - 38  
   
 To report on the available Performance Indicators position and provide 

information about current performance management work within the 
Community Services Division within the Adult and Community Services 
Directorate. 
 

 

   
10. SCOPING STATEMENT FOR PROPOSED REVIEW OF INDEPENDENT 

MUSEUMS AND HERITAGE CENTRES   
39 - 44  

   
 To consider a scoping statement for a proposed review of the support for 

independent museums and heritage centres in the County. 
 

 

   



PUBLIC INFORMATION 

HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL'S SCRUTINY COMMITTEES 

The Council has established Scrutiny Committees for Adult Social Care 
and Strategic Housing, Childrens’ Services, Community Services, 
Environment, and Health.  A Strategic Monitoring Committee scrutinises 
corporate matters and co-ordinates the work of these Committees. 

The purpose of the Committees is to ensure the accountability and 
transparency of the Council's decision making process. 

The principal roles of Scrutiny Committees are to 
 

•  Help in developing Council policy 
 

• Probe, investigate, test the options and ask the difficult questions 
before and after decisions are taken 

 

• Look in more detail at areas of concern which may have been raised 
by the Cabinet itself, by other Councillors or by members of the public 

 

• "call in" decisions  - this is a statutory power which gives Scrutiny 
Committees the right to place a decision on hold pending further 
scrutiny. 

 

• Review performance of the Council 
 

• Conduct Best Value reviews  
 

• Undertake external scrutiny work engaging partners and the public  
 
Formal meetings of the Committees are held in public and information 
on your rights to attend meetings and access to information are set out 
overleaf 
 



PUBLIC INFORMATION 

Public Involvement at Scrutiny Committee Meetings 

You can contact Councillors and Officers at any time about Scrutiny 
Committee matters and issues which you would like the Scrutiny 
Committees to investigate.  

There are also two other ways in which you can directly contribute at 
Herefordshire Council’s Scrutiny Committee meetings. 

1. Identifying Areas for Scrutiny 

At the meeting the Chairman will ask the members of the public present if 
they have any issues which they would like the Scrutiny Committee to 
investigate, however, there will be no discussion of the issue at the time 
when the matter is raised.  Councillors will research the issue and consider 
whether it should form part of the Committee’s work programme when 
compared with other competing priorities. 

Please note that the Committees can only scrutinise items which fall within 
their specific remit (see below).  If a matter is raised which falls within the 
remit of another Scrutiny Committee then it will be noted and passed on to 
the relevant Chairman for their consideration.   

2. Questions from Members of the Public for Consideration at 
Scrutiny Committee Meetings and Participation at Meetings 

You can submit a question for consideration at a Scrutiny Committee 
meeting so long as the question you are asking is directly related to an item 
listed on the agenda.  If you have a question you would like to ask then 
please submit it no later than two working days before the meeting to 
the Committee Officer.  This will help to ensure that an answer can be 
provided at the meeting.  Contact details for the Committee Officer can be 
found on the front page of this agenda.   

Generally, members of the public will also be able to contribute to the 
discussion at the meeting.  This will be at the Chairman’s discretion.   

(Please note that the Scrutiny Committees are not able to discuss 
questions relating to personal or confidential issues.) 



 
Remits of Herefordshire Council’s Scrutiny Committees 
 
Adult Social Care and Strategic Housing 
 
Statutory functions for adult social services including: 
Learning Disabilities 
Strategic Housing 
Supporting People 
Public Health 
 
Children’s Services 
 
Provision of services relating to the well-being of children including 
education, health and social care. 
 
Community Services Scrutiny Committee 
 
Libraries 
Cultural Services including heritage and tourism 
Leisure Services 
Parks and Countryside 
Community Safety 
Economic Development 
Youth Services 
 
Health 
 
Planning, provision and operation of health services affecting the area 
Health Improvement 
Services provided by the NHS 
 
Environment 
 
Environmental Issues 
Highways and Transportation 
 
Strategic Monitoring Committee 
Corporate Strategy and Finance 
Resources  
Corporate and Customer Services 
Human Resources 
 

 



The Public’s Rights to Information and Attendance at 
Meetings  
 
YOU HAVE A RIGHT TO: - 
 
 

• Attend all Council, Cabinet, Committee and Sub-Committee meetings unless the 
business to be transacted would disclose ‘confidential’ or ‘exempt’ information. 

• Inspect agenda and public reports at least five clear days before the date of the 
meeting. 

• Inspect minutes of the Council and all Committees and Sub-Committees and written 
statements of decisions taken by the Cabinet or individual Cabinet Members for up to 
six years following a meeting. 

• Inspect background papers used in the preparation of public reports for a period of up 
to four years from the date of the meeting.  (A list of the background papers to a 
report is given at the end of each report).  A background paper is a document on 
which the officer has relied in writing the report and which otherwise is not available 
to the public. 

• Access to a public Register stating the names, addresses and wards of all 
Councillors with details of the membership of Cabinet and of all Committees and 
Sub-Committees. 

• Have a reasonable number of copies of agenda and reports (relating to items to be 
considered in public) made available to the public attending meetings of the Council, 
Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees. 

• Have access to a list specifying those powers on which the Council have delegated 
decision making to their officers identifying the officers concerned by title. 

• Copy any of the documents mentioned above to which you have a right of access, 
subject to a reasonable charge (20p per sheet subject to a maximum of £5.00 per 
agenda plus a nominal fee of £1.50 for postage). 

• Access to this summary of your rights as members of the public to attend meetings of 
the Council, Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees and to inspect and copy 
documents. 

 

 

 



 

Please Note: 

Agenda and individual reports can be made available in large 
print.  Please contact the officer named on the front cover of this 
agenda in advance of the meeting who will be pleased to deal 
with your request. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
If you have any questions about this agenda, how the Council works or would like more 
information or wish to exercise your rights to access the information described above, 
you may do so either by telephoning the officer named on the front cover of this agenda 
or by visiting in person during office hours (8.45 a.m. - 5.00 p.m. Monday - Thursday 
and 8.45 a.m. - 4.45 p.m. Friday) at the Council Offices, Brockington, 35 Hafod Road, 
Hereford. 

 

 

 

 

 
Where possible this agenda is printed on paper made from 100% Post-Consumer waste. De-

inked without bleaching and free from optical brightening agents (OBA). Awarded the 

Nordic Swan for low emissions during production and the Blue Angel environmental label. 

 



 

FIRE AND EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 
 
 

 

In the event of a fire or emergency the alarm bell will ring 
continuously. 

You should vacate the building in an orderly manner through the 
nearest available fire exit. 

You should then proceed to the assembly point at the front of the 
hotel. 

Please do not allow any items of clothing, etc. to obstruct any of 
the exits. 

Do not delay your vacation of the building by stopping or returning 
to collect coats or other personal belongings. 







COUNTY OF HEREFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

MINUTES of the meeting of Community Services Scrutiny 
Committee held at Green Dragon Hotel, (Ballroom), Broad 
Street, Hereford on Wednesday, 11th January, 2006 at 6.00 
p.m. and reconvened at The Council Chamber, 
Brockington, 35 Hafod Road, Hereford on Friday, 13th 
January, 2006 at 2.00 p.m. 
 
Present on 11th January:  
 Councillor 

Councillor 
A.C.R. Chappell (Chairman) 
H. Bramer (Vice Chairman) 

   
 Councillors M.R. Cunningham, Mrs. S.P.A. Daniels, J.G.S. Guthrie, 

B. Hunt, D.C. Taylor and P.G. Turpin 
 

Co-opted Members Ms. B. Heavens (Tourism) and G. Woodman (Chamber 
of Commerce) 

  
Present on 13th January:  

Councillor A.C.R. Chappell (Chairman) 
Councillor H. Bramer (Vice Chairman) 

  
Councillors M.R. Cunningham, B. Hunt, Mrs. M.D. Lloyd-Hayes, D.C. 

Taylor and P.G. Turpin 
  

Co-opted Members Ms. B. Heavens (Tourism) and G. Woodman (Chamber 
of Commerce) 

  
In attendance on 
11th January: 

Councillors: Mrs. W.U. Attfield, D.J. Fleet, K.G. Grumbley, Ms. G.A. 
Powell, D.B. Wilcox and R.M. Wilson. 

  
In attendance on 
13th January: 

Councillors: P.J. Edwards, J.H.R. Goodwin, R.I. Matthews, Ms. 
G.A. Powell, D.B. Wilcox and R.M. Wilson. 

  
34. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
  
 Apologies were received from Councillor J.G.S. Guthrie, Councillor J.C. Mayson 

(Cabinet Member – Rural Regeneration and Strategy), Councillor R.V. Stockton 
(Cabinet Member – Community Services), G. Jones and Ms. C. Jones.   
 
Apologies were received from Councillor Mrs. S.P.A. Daniels for the reconvened 
meeting on 13th January 2006.  

  
35. NAMED SUBSTITUTES   
  
 Ms B. Heavens substituted for G. Jones and G. Woodman substituted for Ms. C. 

Jones. 
 
Councillor Mrs. M.D. Lloyd-Hayes substituted for Councillor Mrs. S.P.A. Daniels at 
the reconvened meeting on 13th January 2006. 

  
36. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
  
 There were no declarations of interest. 

AGENDA ITEM 4

1



COMMUNITY SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WEDNESDAY, 11TH JANUARY, 2006 

 
  
37. MINUTES   
  
 RESOLVED: That, subject to the inclusion of apologies for Councillor Mrs. 

S.P.A. Daniels, the minutes for the meeting held on 14 December 
2005, be approved as a correct record and signed by the 
Chairman. 

  
38. SUGGESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC ON ISSUES FOR FUTURE 

SCRUTINY   
  
 No suggestions from Members of the public on issues for future scrutiny were 

received. 
  
39. REVIEW OF THE EXPERIMENT TO PEDESTRIANISE WIDEMARSH STREET, 

HEREFORD   
  
 The Chairman welcomed members of the public and the invited witnesses to the 

meeting and introduced Councillor K.G. Grumbley who was representing the 
Environment Scrutiny Committee. 
 
The Chairman explained that the purpose of the evenings meeting was to hear all 
the evidence from the invited witnesses and that once all the evidence had been 
heard then the meeting would adjourn.  He stated that the meeting was scheduled to 
reconvene on 13 January 2006 and this was when the Committee would review the 
evidence which it had heard from the invited witnesses and then consider if it wished 
to make any recommendations to the Cabinet Member (Highways and 
Transportation).  
 
He announced that he had been handed a petition before the start of the meeting 
signed by 108 people who supported the idea for the scheme to pedestrianise 
Widemarsh Street subject to a review of access.  This was in addition to a number of 
written submissions received in advance of the meeting which had been circulated to 
Members before the meeting. 
 
The Committee had received a number of written submissions in advance of the 
meeting, these included: 
 

o Letter from Cllr Alan Taylor, Hereford City Council, suggesting that new 
disabled parking spaces could be provided in Norgate Street during the 
hours Widemarsh Street was closed to traffic. 

o Letter from Mr and Mrs Jones, Hereford Residents, who were against 
pedestrianisation.  Also outlined was the additional problems with finding 
disabled parking spaces since pedestrianisation and a suggestion that if 
pedestrianisation was to remain in place then access should be allowed 
to buses, taxis and disabled badge holders. 

o Letter from Nick Romans, Manager, Marks and Spencer, discussing taxi 
access to the store from East Street and a reduction in elderly customers 
now that taxis could not collect them from High Street. 

o Letter from Georgia Smith, Association of Town Centre Management, on 
issues to consider when considering a pedestrianisation scheme and the 
retail climate. 

o Letter from Steve Zanker, Commercial Director, First Buses, calling for a 
quality city centre bus stopping area and priority road measures for 
buses.  The letter proposed that Widemarsh Street could be the site of a 
new bus terminal for Hereford. 

o Letter from Paul Keetch MP stating that “pedestrianisation could be 

2



COMMUNITY SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WEDNESDAY, 11TH JANUARY, 2006 

 
advantageous as long as access for the disabled, vehicular and other 
modes of transport inclusive,  taxis and bus/coach access can be 
included in the final scheme.” He also wished to see “swifter access 
incorporated to allow ambulance and fire services in particular immediate 
entry through the gates and not losing valuable, potential lifesaving 
moments waiting for gates to be unlocked.” 

 
The Chairman called the first witness. 
 
West Mercia Police – Sergeant Dave Evans and PC Colin Mears 
 

• Sgt Evans informed the Committee that there had been no significant additional 
problems with traffic in Hereford at any time during the experiment to 
pedestrianise Widemarsh Street.   However, he did state that there had been 
some problems with vehicles exiting from Bewell Street and then driving through 
the pedestrianised area.  He felt that this was a safety problem as shoppers were 
not expecting to encounter vehicles.  During the experiment there were no 
accidents but there were some reports of near misses. 

 

• In response to a question PC Mears clarified that there had been no noticeable 
increase in traffic on the ring road resulting from the road closure.  It was still as 
congested as it had been since before the introduction of the partial closure. 

 

• The Committee heard that there had been no accidents when Widemarsh St was 
reopened to traffic at 4.30 p.m.  However, PC Mears stated that additional traffic 
problems were caused by motorists waiting on the ring road in the minutes 
leading up to the reopening of the gates to Widemarsh Street. 

 

• Members were informed that emergency response times had not been affected 
by the experiment.  Emergency vehicles could access the pedestrianised area 
during the day by entering a secret number into a keypad attached to gate.  Sgt 
Evans conceded that there had been some problems with accessing Widemarsh 
Street when the experiment was first introduced but these problems had now 
been resolved. 

 

• The Police reported that they had heard of coaches and HGV’s having difficulty 
turning from West Street into Broad Street. 

 

• It was explained that in the event of an incident which blocked both lanes on the 
ring road an operational decision could be taken by senior police officers to 
request that the pedestrianised area be opened to traffic during the daytime. 

 

• PC Mears informed the Committee that there had been a reduction in crime in 
the area during the period of the trial pedestrianisation scheme.  

 

• PC Mears reported that problems had been experienced with motorists exiting 
West Street and reversing into Norgate Street to park within an area that was 
part of the pedestrianised zone. 

 
Taxi Representatives – Mr Jimmy Clyde and Mr Steve Williams 
 

• Mr Clyde began by stating that he and Mr Williams were representatives of the 
Taxi Association (TA) and that whilst not every taxi driver in Hereford was a 
member of the TA a vote taken at a meeting of the TA on 15th August 2005 had 
revealed that all members of the TA opposed the partial closure of Widemarsh 
Street. 

3



COMMUNITY SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WEDNESDAY, 11TH JANUARY, 2006 

 
 

• Members were informed that as a result of pedestrianisation e taxi drivers had 
lost daytime use of the Widemarsh Street (a total of 8 spaces).  This had resulted  
in drivers relocating to alternative ranks which had consequently reduced the 
number of jobs for the drivers who had previously used the ranks outside of 
Widemarsh Street as there were now more taxis competing for the same 
customers in the same areas.  For example, before pedestrianisation a taxi 
working the rank in Broad Street could expect to get a job every 10/15 minutes, 
but now due to the movement of other taxis to this area and the increased traffic 
congestion drivers could expect to get a job about once an hour.  This was 
having the greatest impact on independent drivers who not being attached to a 
parent company relied on rank pick-ups as they did not receive jobs by radio. 

 

• The Committee heard how elderly and disabled people were losing their 
independence as they could no longer get dropped off or picked up in the city 
centre.  It was asserted that as they were no longer using taxis to visit other 
places then they were making alternative arrangements to get their shopping 
done.  Mr Clyde cited an example of a fishmongers in the Butter Market who was 
reporting a drop in sales due to reduced visits from his elderly customers. 

 

• Hi-Town and Rank Taxis both have free phones in Marks and Spencer, the 
Committee was informed that calls from these phones had dropped by 60%. 

 

• The Committee heard that the 2 new rank spaces provided in St Peters Square 
had been requested three years ago due to the increased number of taxis in 
Hereford and they had only recently been provided.  They provided no real 
alternative to the Widemarsh Street rank.  The same case stood for the 4 
additional rank spaces which had been provided at the rear of the Maylord 
Orchards.  The ranks at the Maylord Orchards were not as flexible as the ranks 
in Widemarsh Street as they could only be accessed by south moving traffic and 
buses used the area as well and often obscured the rank   There were now over 
250 taxi drivers licensed to work in Hereford therefore the addition of 6 extra rank 
spaces was required in addition to those that had been available in Widemarsh 
Street rather than instead of them. 

 

• Mr Clyde reported that he was losing 20% of his takings due to traffic congestion.  
This was due to reduced customers as taxis were becoming more expensive as 
journey times had increased because of the traffic; providing discounts to regular 
customers by reducing fares that had become high due to being stuck in traffic; 
and increased time in returning to rank because of traffic which reduced the 
number of jobs a driver could do. 

 

• In response to a question Mr Clyde informed the Committee that, in his opinion, 
traffic in Hereford had worsened during the pedestrianisation experiment in the 
first 35 minutes after the gate to enter Widemarsh Street was closed and that the 
afternoon rush hour now appeared to start around 1.30 p.m. rather than 3.00 
p.m. as it had previously.  The roads remained busy then until around 6.00 p.m. 

 

• Mr Williams stated that he felt that traffic tailbacks in the City were worse now 
than before pedestrianisation was introduced.  This was evidenced by the 
increased time it took taxi drivers to return to ranks and by longer tailbacks, for 
example, on Aylestone Hill.  He stated that serious road improvements needed to 
take place before the opening of the new Asda store otherwise traffic congestion 
would further reduce the number of visitors to Hereford City Centre and thus 
damage the economic well-being of the City. 

 

4



COMMUNITY SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WEDNESDAY, 11TH JANUARY, 2006 

 
• Mr Clyde reported that drivers were now having to work an extra 1½-2 hours 

extra per day to earn the same levels of income as before the introduction of 
partial pedestrianisation.  However, it was conceded that it would be necessary 
to take into account the increase in the number of taxi drivers in Hereford some 
of whom were prepared to work long hours for smaller amounts of money than 
previous drivers existing in Hereford. 

 

• In response to a question Mr Clyde suggested that if the partial pedestrianisation 
scheme was to become permanent alternative rank capacity could be provided 
along the whole length of Broad Street.  But this would reduce car-parking 
capacity in the City which would need to be provided elsewhere.  He added that 
private cars increased congestion and pollution in the West Street/Broad 
Street/King Street areas by circulating around looking for a free parking space.  
He also added that he felt taxis should be given permission to enter East Street 
legally, if this was provided then an additional rank could be located in Offa 
Street pending a traffic order to reverse the flow of traffic so that cars could exit 
from East Street into Broad Street.  However, he felt that Hereford should first 
deal with its traffic and congestion problems before pedestrianisation was even 
considered. 

 

• Another solution would be for the pedestrianised area to be open to taxis and 
buses so that people could access the City Centre. 

 

• The Committee heard that some customers were being picked up at the rear of 
the Marks and Spencer store in East Street but that this was not a reasonable 
alternative for those customers who lived south of the river as a long slow and 
expensive journey around the congested ring road would be necessary.  This 
was in addition to the problems of delivery vehicles causing obstacles. 

 

• The Committee heard that Worcester had two city centre ranks which could both 
accommodate 11 taxis. 

 

• Mr Clyde was not surprised to hear that business at the Shopmobilty centre was 
down, he felt that this was due to the reduced number of elderly and infirm 
people visiting the city centre. 

 

• Members were informed that the taxi rank at Tesco’s was chaotic.  He added that 
the police were lenient to taxi drivers who were blocking the road while queuing 
to get into the rank.  This congestion was further compounded by many disabled 
drivers parking their vehicles in the road and by regular Tesco customers using it 
as a convenient stop off point to leave their vehicle whilst buying goods.  He 
added that the current Tesco store and its bus station had outgrown itself and 
that they should both be relocated, possibly within the Edgar Street Grid. 

 

• Finally, Mr Clyde added that the City’s taxi drivers were currently fighting for their 
livelihoods. 

 
Stagecoach Bus Company – Derek White and Clive Elsmore 
 

• Mr White informed the Committee that his company were now using bus stops in 
Maylord Orchards rather than Widemarsh Street.  He explained that this had 
initially affected passenger numbers but passengers had now returned.  He 
continued by stating that the closure of Widemarsh Street had led to his company 
re-routing their vehicles permanently which had lengthened journey times and 
inconvenienced customers.  Mr Elsmore added that Stagecoach operated as if 
there was a complete closure as even when Widemarsh Street was open to 

 

5



COMMUNITY SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WEDNESDAY, 11TH JANUARY, 2006 

 
traffic their services travelled on the ring road. 

 

• Mr White felt that buses should be granted priority measures over cars by being 
able to access the pedestrianised area as that was the destination of the most of 
their customers.  It was also the best place to collect them.  It would also help to 
reduce journey times as buses would not need to sit in traffic whilst travelling 
around the ring road. 

 

• The Chairman informed the meeting that the First Bus Company had provided a 
written statement which had been sent to all Members of the Committee in 
advance of the meeting.  In the statement First had stated that they would like to 
see a bus terminal in the Widemarsh Street area of the city centre.  In reply to 
this comment Mr White stated that it would be beneficial to any bus company to 
have a terminal which was in or near to the area where the majority of people 
were visiting. 

 

• Mr White stated that he would like buses to be able to access the pedestrianised 
zone and that he would be happy for taxis to share access. 

 

• The Committee was informed that in Gloucester there were bus stops within 100 
metres of the centre at several points, however, the level of pedestrianisation in 
Gloucester was significantly less than in Hereford.  In Cheltenham a bizarre ring 
road system made all navigation very difficult. 

 
 
General Traders – Morris Jones (Phillip Morris and Son), Luke Conod (Jeans 
Station) and Nick Romans (Marks and Spencer) 
 

• The Chairman asked the witnesses if they felt the pedestrianisation had had any 
effect on their takings?  Mr Romans stated that his takings were fractionally down 
when compared with other Marks and Spencer stores of a similar size nationally, 
however, he did not feel able to attribute this to pedestrianisation.  Mr Jones 
informed the Committee that during the first quarter his takings had been down 
but in the remaining three quarters targets had either been met or exceeded.  Mr 
Conod felt that trading during the summer had been difficult, however, this was 
more likely to have been caused by the recent Eign Gate refurbishment.  Since 
the refurbishment had finished income had improved. 

 

• Mr Jones commented that the current success of his shop-based business could 
be down to pedestrianisation.  He recalled that the current pedestrianised street 
reminded him of an old fashioned Wednesday when vehicles would not be able 
to enter Widemarsh Street because of the huge number of people visiting the 
street. 

 

• In terms of deliveries to their respective stores, Mr Romans commented that his 
store had not been affected as delivery vehicles accessed his store via West 
Street and East Street.  Mr Conod commented that his delivery system had 
improved as couriers arrived with stock earlier in the day than they had 
previously.  Mr Jones stated that the pedestrianisation deadline had improved the 
efficiency of internal deliveries to his store.  Mr Jones continued by explaining 
that delivery drivers and companies were aware of the pedestrianisation in 
Hereford as in other cities around the Country and that he did not feel it was too 
much of a problem for them.  Mr Jones added that his store had no rear access 
so if the partial scheme was to become a 24 hour scheme then there would be 
no way for his store to take deliveries and ship out orders. 

 

6



COMMUNITY SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WEDNESDAY, 11TH JANUARY, 2006 

 
• Mr Jones informed the Committee that his store was experiencing a downturn in 

the sale of large, heavy goods as people were no longer able to quickly pull up 
outside the store to load their vehicles. 

 

• Mr Romans stated that people shopping in his store had been advised that their 
goods could be transported into East Street whereby collection in a taxi could be 
arranged, however, even this was too far for some elderly customers to walk and 
many others considered it to be too dangerous to walk along the narrow path and 
cross over the road. 

 

• In response to a question asked about what feedback, if any, customers had 
provided to the three witnesses, Mr Conod explained that many of his customers 
were young mothers who were very happy with the scheme as it took away any 
worries of their children being injured by vehicles.  Mr Jones stated that the 
Widemarsh Street Committee, made up of traders in the area, wanted the Street 
to remain pedestrianised. 

 

• The witnesses were asked what changes, if any, they would make to the current 
pedestrianisation scheme if it were to become permanent.  Mr Jones stated that 
he was conscious of the danger to the public upon the reintroduction of traffic at 
4.30 p.m., however, his managers were pleased that the street reopened to 
traffic as it allowed them to process orders and get them out for distribution.  Mr 
Conod’s opinion was that 10.30 a.m.- 4.30 p.m. pedestrianisation should remain 
in place but with access for coaches, buses and taxis, he felt that the risk to the 
public would be minimal as they were professional drivers who would be keen to 
minimise any risk to the public.  He felt that the gate which closed Widemarsh 
Street to traffic should become automatic with vehicles that were allowed access 
to the area given a disc which would raise the gate automatically when within 
range of the barrier with keypad access available to those without discs.  Mr 
Romans felt that the most important issue was the City’s wider traffic problems.  
He felt that if the pedestrianisation of Widemarsh Street was increasing traffic 
problems in Hereford then the scheme should be reconsidered.   If it was decided 
that partial pedestrianisation was to remain in place Mr Romans was supportive 
of access to buses and taxis. 

 

• Finally, Mr Conod, stated that recently he had been reviewing newspaper articles 
from the 1970’s which discussed the then proposed pedestrianisation of Eign 
Gate.  He explained that from these articles he was able to deduce that 
essentially all the points which the Committee were considering tonight had been 
considered with regard to the Eign Gate scheme. 

 
Broad Street, King Street and Bridge Street Traders – Ian Shackleton (Chave 
and Jackson), Bill Jackson (Estate Agent) and John Lewis (Left Bank Village) 
 

• Mr Lewis informed the meeting that his company had experienced a downturn in 
trade which he felt had been partially caused by the pedestrianisation 
experiment.  Footfall at the Left Bank had reduced during the summer months.  
Mr Lewis felt that there were fewer people coming to Hereford or that people 
were visiting less frequently, he believed that this was down to the high levels of 
congestion in and around the city which discouraged visitors.  Mr Lewis 
explained that during the summer months the Left Bank relied on tourists for 
trade and he felt that these people were now not coming as a result of coaches 
not dropping off in Broad Street near the Cathedral. 

 

• Mr Jackson reported that there had been a general decline in retail business in 
the Broad Street/King Street/Bridge Street area of approximately 5% since the 

7



COMMUNITY SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WEDNESDAY, 11TH JANUARY, 2006 

 
introduction of the pedestrianisation experiment, he explained how shops in 
Broad Street and King Street had remained empty once the occupying business 
had closed.  He also cited the example of Creative Lighting in King Street which 
was currently closing. The owner of Creative Lighting had stated some time ago 
that she would close if pedestrianisation was introduced and was now going 
through with closure.  He also stated that a newsagents in the area had closed.  
Mr Jackson reported that since the experiment was introduced there was a 
decline in the number of people who were visiting this side of town.  This fact was 
illustrated by the point that letting agents in the city were unable to lease the 
empty commercial premises in the area.  He said that if he was asked as a 
shopper he would favour pedestrianisation but for traders he could see that the 
scheme was causing problems.  Mr Jackson explained that the biggest impact 
the scheme had caused on his business was that, due to traffic problems, it was 
very hard to make and keep viewing times as congestion was so bad.  However, 
he felt that the biggest question was whether or not people were prepared to see 
the Broad Street/King Street/Bridge Street area of town decimated of retail 
outlets. 

 

• Mr Shackleton informed the Committee that he had only limited experience of 
retail conditions in Hereford as he had only acquired his stores 8 weeks ago.  
However, after viewing previous income figures month on month he believed that 
they were in line with current retail performance and with his other stores based 
in Abergavenney.  Mr Shackleton was concerned about the traffic situation in the 
City and commented that it was impossible to predict how long it would take a 
person to travel from the Tesco Store at Belmont on the A465 into the city centre.  
He felt that if the pedestrianisation of Widemarsh Street was affecting traffic then 
perhaps alternative actions should be sought.  Mr Shackleton suggested that as 
there were many loading bays in Broad Street, which were mainly used during 
the week, that perhaps they could be used for short term parking at weekends. 

  
 
Disabled Witnesses – Jim Lawes (Access for All) and Anne Rolfe (Royal 
National College for the Blind) 
 

• Mr Lawes informed the Committee that since pedestrianisation had been 
introduced many of the Access for All patrons had been pleased with the results.  
However, there were problems with some vehicles being within the 
pedestrianised area after the 10.30 a.m. curfew plus additional problems with 
cyclists in the Widemarsh Street area travelling in all directions.  He stated that 
he knew of some people who were afraid to go into the area because of 
disrespectful cyclists.  But generally people were in favour of the scheme, elderly 
and disabled people felt that it had improved the atmosphere of the city centre. 

 

• Ms Rolfe, clarified that she was speaking on behalf of the Royal National College 
for the Blind and visually impaired (VI) people.  She felt that the partial 
pedestrianisation was confusing to people and placed the onus on individuals to 
be aware of the time and consequently the status of the pedestrianised area.  
However, due to access from Bewell Street pedestrians were not really safe 
during this traffic excluded time either as an unexpected vehicle could exit Bewell 
Street into the pedestrianised zone at any time.  These were problems for fully 
sighted people but for VI people the problems of rogue drivers entering the 
pedestrianised area from Bewell Street was even worse.  Problems for VI people 
increased as a section of the road between High Street and Eign Gate was now 
the same height as the pavement which made it difficult for VI people to 
differentiate between the path and road.  Even for those VI people who were not 
totally blind the colour difference between each surface was so subtle that they 
would probably not be able to tell the difference either.  She also explained how 

8



COMMUNITY SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WEDNESDAY, 11TH JANUARY, 2006 

 
there were similar problems with the large seated island at the entrance to Eign 
gate and with the new lighting poles. 

 

• Mr Lawes supported the earlier statement from the Taxi Association that fewer 
older people were using taxis to visit the city centre.  The reason people were no 
longer coming to Hereford was because they could no longer be picked up and 
dropped off in the heart of the city.  Mr Lawes stated that he had received a letter 
from a lady who no longer visited Hereford to shop since the introduction of the 
pedestrianisation experiment. 

 

• Ms Rolfe explained to Members that the system of taxis dropping off and picking 
up people from outside Marks and Spencer was a disadvantage to VI people.  
This was because taxis often mounted the pavement and became an obstacle for 
VI people to negotiate.  Additionally vehicles would mount the pavement outside 
Boots where there was a marked crossing for VI people with tactile paving slabs.  
If a vehicle was parked over these paving slabs then a VI person would not be 
able to find the crossing and be less able to cross the road.  VI people would 
experience further problems if the current works in High Street were going to 
raise the level of the road to the same as the pavement.  

 

• In relation to the issue of reduced trade at the Shopmobilty centre in Maylord 
Orchards, Mr Lawes stated that it was true that many people did now own their 
own mobility vehicles.  He also felt that another factor in the reduction in trade 
could be the difficulty which people experience in accessing the Maylord 
Orchards car park which had been made more difficult following the increase in 
traffic congestion. 

 

• Finally, Mr Lawes reported to Members that he felt pedestrian signage within the 
city centre, especially the Widemarsh Street and High Town areas could be 
improved. 

 
Hereford Cathedral – Dominic Harbour and Lt Col Andrew Eames 
 

• Lt Col Eames and Mr Harbour were asked about the impact the pedestrianisation 
scheme had had on visitors to the Cathedral. 

 

• Lt Col Eames reported that the Cathedral was currently working in partnership 
with the Council to secure a major grant for the refurbishment of the Cathedral 
Close.  This had been an effective and fruitful partnership.  He suggested that 
this was in contrast with the schemes for the regeneration of High Town and 
Widemarsh Street each of which was being carried out by different sections of 
the Council with an apparent absence of joined up thinking.  However, the two 
schemes affected the City as a whole. The Widemarsh Street Closure was being 
overseen by the Highways Section but was an Economic Development issue as 
well as a highways issue.  The impact on the number of visitors to the cathedral 
had an effect on the economic performance of the City as a whole. 

 

• When Widemarsh Street had been closed in 2004 the Cathedral had suffered a 
reduction of 32% in visitor numbers.  Coaches simply would not visit.  The 
Cathedral had been promised that 2005 would be different.  There had been a 
gain of 4.5% on the 2004 figure but this still meant that visitors were down 27.5 
% compared with 2003. 

 

• Whilst visitors said that they enjoyed their visit the Coach drivers who brought 
them said that the route to the Cathedral was awful and that they would not 
return. 

9



COMMUNITY SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WEDNESDAY, 11TH JANUARY, 2006 

 
 

• There was concern that word would spread within the tourism industry that 
Hereford was not a good place to visit. 

 

• The Director of Planning of the former Hereford City Council had acknowledged 
in correspondence to him in the early 90’s that buses found it extremely difficult 
to turn from West Street into Broad Street.   

 

• Mr Harbour commented that the approach via Broad Street to the Cathedral had 
provided visitors with the opportunity to gain a pleasant impression of the city as 
they drove through to the Cathedral.  This was in contrast to the route along 
West Street. 

 

• In response to a question Lt Col Eames said that a coach drop off point at the 
Shire Hall with a signposted route to the Cathedral was not thought to be 
practical.  It was considered that it was likely to be too far to walk for many of the 
Cathedral’s visitors and that their itinerary would also allow them insufficient time. 

 

• Lt Col Eames noted that an assurance had been received that works would not 
be carried out in High Town during the  2006 Three Choirs Festival this year.  He 
also noted that at the major flower festival held in June 1999 at the Cathedral had 
attracted 55 coaches in one morning.  He had no idea how this would be 
managed if the present arrangements were in place when the next Flower 
Festival took place in 2007. 

 

• In response to questions he agreed that the Cathedral was a major attraction, 
that it had suffered financial detriment as a result of the pedestrianisation scheme 
and that he wanted the scheme to be removed. 

 

• Responding to a comment Councillor RM Wilson (Cabinet Member Resources) 
reassured the Committee that the Council’s Economic Liaison Group was 
designed to ensure that the Council did have a joined-up approach to its 
economic development work and that this was operating effectively. 

 
City Centre Partnership Cynthia Spaull 
 

• Asked about the retail climate Cynthia Spaull commented that 2005 had not been 
a good year on the whole.  December had been quite good but retailers needed 
to make 40% of their sales during that month to be viable. 

 

• The Cathedral was the biggest tourist attraction in the County generating a 
quarter of a million visitors and was very important to the City’s economic 
viability.  If visitor numbers reduced further the City would see a significant 
decline.  Without the visitors generated by the Cathedral the City economy would 
be that of a market town.   

 

• She said that there were always plenty of alternative places for tour operators to 
visit and noted the introduction of buses from Holme Lacy House Hotel to Ross 
Labels. 

 

• West Street was not a suitable main access route and suffered from congestion.  
It was almost impossible for buses to turn right form West Street into Broad 
Street. 

 
Council Officers – Jane Lewis (Acting Head of Cultural Services) and Stephen 
Oates (Head of Highways and Transportation) 

10



COMMUNITY SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WEDNESDAY, 11TH JANUARY, 2006 

 
 
• The Acting Cultural Services Manager was asked to comment on how visitor 

numbers had been affected by the pedestrianisation experiment and on national 
trends regarding visitor numbers. 

 

• She provided statistics for Hereford Museum, the Old House and the Tourist 
Information Centre in Hereford.  There had been a decline in attendance at the 
museum between 2003 and 2005.  Between April 2005 and December 2005 
there had been a decline of 1,062 compared with the same period for 2004 and a 
decline of 2,401 compared with the same period for 2003.  This was not out of 
line with the national trend for visitors to museums.  Museums at Worcester, 
Abergavenney and Brecon had also experienced a decline in visitor numbers.  

 

• At the Old House there had been an increase in visitors during 2005 compared 
with the previous year. 

 

• At the Tourist Information Centres there had been a decline year on year: 
 

2003: 89,500 
2004: 80,633 
2005 76,433 

 
This was in line with national trends and was attributable in part to the increasing 
use being made of the internet.  In addition in 2005 the Centres had not sold 
local bus tickets, a service they had previously provided which brought in a 
considerable number of local visitors.  The cathedral at Brecon had also 
experienced a decline in numbers.  In terms of visitors generally she commented 
that there was a need to increase the number of people staying in the County 
overnight which would then generate increased visitors to attractions in the 
region. 

 
• The Head of Highways and Transportation set out the background to the 

pedestrianisation experiment.  He reminded the Committee that the Council had 
identified that Hereford City had been slipping in its ranking as a shopping centre 
in relation to its competitors and that there was a need to find ways of improving 
the City’s economic vitality.  A number of measures had been identified by the 
Council but it would take time for some of these to have an effect.  When 
Widemarsh Street had been closed to traffic during works by Transco in 2004 
many people had said that it had improved the City Centre.  Surveys undertaken 
during the closure had shown strong public support for improved pedestrian 
conditions.  A pedestrianisation experiment had subsequently been authorised 
and detailed evidence had been gathered to enable an objective assessment of 
the effects of the scheme to be made.  The results were shortly to be presented 
to Cabinet. 
 

• In response to a suggestion that part of Widemarsh Street was now very quiet 
and an unused resource the Head of Highways and Transportation pointed out 
that other parts of the street were now much busier with pedestrians. The final 
decision on the scheme had to consider the overall performance of the 
experiment. 
 

• If the pedestrianisation scheme were to be made permanent the streetscape 
could be enhanced and the junction with the ringroad improved. 
 

• In response to a suggestion that a complex range of additional traffic 
management measures would follow if the pedestrianisation scheme became 

11



COMMUNITY SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WEDNESDAY, 11TH JANUARY, 2006 

 
permanent the Head of Highways and Transportation explained that the Council 
was continually developing traffic measures in Hereford and that these 
programmes would continue. He suggested that any judgement on the 
experiment should be based on the scheme as it stood but that the Council could 
always consider additional measures if these were felt to be a priority. 
 

• A question was asked as to whether there were any proposals to change the 
gates at St Peter's Square.  The Head of Highways and Transportation explained 
that the Widemarsh Street gates had been manufactured to the same width as 
those at St Peter's Street and if the pedestrianisation scheme did not proceed the 
Council would have a spare set of gates available should those at St Peter’s 
Square ever need to be replaced. 
 

• He confirmed in response to a question raised earlier in the meeting that it was 
part of the procedure when opening the gates in the evening that a Council 
vehicle proceeded first along the route to alert pedestrians. 
 

• In relation to income received by the Council’s car parks in the City he reported 
that this had been slightly lower during the pedestrianisation period.  However, 
account had to be taken of the increasing number of private car parks in the City.  
It also had to be noted that the decline in income from Council car parks outside 
the City had been proportionately greater. 

 
The Chairman thanked the invited witnesses for attending the meeting and stated 
that it was essential that everyone’s views were taken into account. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8.28 p.m. 
 
The meeting reconvened at 2.00 p.m. on Friday, 13 January 2006 in the Council 
Chamber, Brockington, 35 Hafod Road, Hereford. 
 
The Chairman welcomed Members and members of the public to the meeting and 
explained that the Committee would be reviewing the evidence it had heard 
previously.  Based on the evidence it would also decide whether or not it wished to 
make recommendations to the Cabinet Member (Highways and Transportation) on 
what the Committee thought was the best way forward for the Widemarsh Street 
pedestrianisation scheme. 
 
The Chairman informed the Committee that he had received no notification from any 
of the witnesses interviewed at the previous sitting of the Committee of any wish to 
present confidential information, for example company accounts, to the Committee to 
support any statements made before the Committee adjourned. 
 
The Chairman noted that new evidence had been received since Wednesday night’s 
meeting and that Members of the Committee had been supplied with copies of the 
documents received.  The documents included: 
 

• Email from PC Colin Mears. 

• Letter from Maurice Jones, summarising the points made at the earlier meeting. 

• Copy of the Petition signed by members of the public at Beads-in-Abundance as 
received at the earlier meeting. 

• Letter to Jim Lawes from Mrs T Minton highlighting her personal problems 
experienced since the closure of Widemarsh Street. 

• Letter to Jim Lawes from Anne Rolfe, Royal National College for the Blind, 
highlighting the problems experienced by visually impaired people since 
pedestrianisation and the refurbishment of Eign Gate. 

12



COMMUNITY SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WEDNESDAY, 11TH JANUARY, 2006 

 
• Letter from Widemarsh Street Traders Association, in favour of pedestrianisation 

also highlighting problems which needed to be addressed to improve the scheme 
including: introducing measures to prevent cyclists in the pedestrianised area; 
introducing measures to prevent vehicles entering High Street from Bewell 
Street; introduction of more dropped kerbs for disabled visitors; consideration be 
given to altering the time which vehicles re-enter Widemarsh Street in the 
afternoon; and that pedestrianisation be introduced during Christmas late night 
shopping. 

• Letter to Stephen Oates, outlining visitor trends since pedestrianisation had been 
introduced in Widemarsh Street and its impact on coach visitors, the Cathedral 
and Hereford generally. 

• Three articles from the local press, one article against pedestrianisation and two 
in favour. 

 
The Committee took time to read the draft notes which summarised the evidence 
heard at the previous sitting of the Committee, which had been prepared as an aide 
memoir for Members.  Members approved the draft notes as accurate as a basis for 
further discussion. 
 
The Committee reviewed the evidence they heard from Sergeant Dave Evans and 
PC Colin Mears of West Mercia Police.    The following are the principal points from 
the ensuing discussion: 
 

• A Member of the Committee expressed a view that he felt that traffic had 
increased since the partial closure of Widemarsh Street was introduced.  Whilst 
traffic on the ring road appears to be at similar levels to those pre-closure he felt 
that tailbacks leading into the city, on feeder roads to the ring road, had 
increased. 

• It was reiterated that the Police had stated that there was no noticeable increase 
in traffic on the ring road since the introduction of partial pedestrianisation. 

• The Tourism Representative stated that she believed the Police could do more to 
help manage traffic in Hereford. 

• The Director of Adult and Community Services read out an email received from 
PC Colin Mears, which had been distributed to Members at the meeting, 
reiterating the point that he felt that Widemarsh Street should not be used to 
relive traffic from the ring road. This was becuase the same traffic which exited 
the ring road into Widemarsh Street would have to re-enter the ring road at either 
St. Nicholas Street or St. Martins Street which in itself would increase traffic on 
the ring road as traffic lights were required to stop the traffic on the ring road to 
let those cars which had exited into Widemarsh Street back onto the ring road.  
PC Mears also stated that it was the belief of the Police that traffic should be 
excluded from Widemarsh Street until 18.00 to exclude the potential conflict 
between pedestrians and vehicles. 

• It was stated that Widemarsh Street should not be considered an arterial route 
through the City. 

 
The Committee reviewed the evidence heard from Mr Jimmy Clyde and Mr Steve 
Williams of the Taxi Association.  The following are the principal points from the 
ensuing discussion: 
 

• A Member of the Committee stated that he felt the representatives of the Taxi 
Association made some relevant points to the Committee including how their 
takings had dropped mainly due to the congestion which had been caused by the 
partial closure of Widemarsh Street. 

• The Chairman explained that the Committee had received no documentary 
evidence that the takings of taxi drivers were down.  He felt that the rise in the 

13



COMMUNITY SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WEDNESDAY, 11TH JANUARY, 2006 

 
number of taxi drivers in the city would have had an impact on the takings of taxi 
drivers in Hereford and that perhaps this was more to blame for the reduction in 
takings than pedestrianisation. 

• The Chamber of Commerce representative stated that whilst there maybe 250 
taxi drivers in Hereford it needed to be pointed out that many of these drivers 
may only work on Friday and Saturday nights as this was the peak time of 
business for taxi drivers. 

• It was suggested that the number of taxi driver licences in Hereford should be 
capped. 

• The taxi rank at Tesco’s in Hereford City Centre was considered a hazard that 
should be investigated further.  As should the potential for new ranks outside 
Barclays Bank in Norgate Street and in Offa Street should pedestrianisation 
continue. 

• It was noted that the taxi rank in St. Peters Square sometimes disrupted funerals 
taking place at St. Peters Church. 

• A view was expressed that it seemed like the police and taxi association 
representatives were from “a parallel universe”.  However, the Member felt that 
the evidence presented by the Taxi Association representatives was compelling 
and, even though no evidence had been presented to support their statements, 
their view should be respected.  He stated that the Committee should bear in 
mind the Taxi Association representatives points regarding increased congestion 
and the reduction in the numbers of elderly customers who could no longer 
access the city centre. 

 
The Committee reviewed the evidence heard from the Stagecoach bus company.  
The following are the principal points from the ensuing discussion: 
 

• A Member of the Committee stated that the evidence heard informing that since 
pedestrianisation had been introduced Stagecoach had suffered from increased 
journey times and inconvenience for passengers was relevant to the Committee. 

• It was stated that an alternative pick up point at the Maylord Orchards was not 
really too much of an inconvenience for Stagecoach bus passengers as it was 
only a short distance away from the previous bus stop in Widemarsh Street.  It 
was also better for pedestrians if buses picked up at Maylord Orchards as they 
would not have to suffer from the pollution omitted from the exhausts of buses 
travelling through the city centre. 

• The Head of Highways and Transportation stated that from the consultation 
responses 24% of respondents felt there had been no impact on public transport 
from the closure of Widemarsh Street to traffic, 10% had thought that it had 
improved and only 10% thought that it was worse or much worse.  He also 
clarified that no bus company’s used the bus stop in Broad Street since the 
experiment to pedestrianise Widemarsh Street had been introduced. 

• It was stated that the bus stop in Broad Street had been well used and was 
convenient to customers. 

 
The Committee reviewed the evidence heard from Maurice Jones (Phillip Morris and 
Son), Luke Conod (Jeans Station) and John Lewis (Left Bank Village).  The following 
are the principal points from the ensuing discussion: 
 

• With regard to the comment made by Mr Jones that his store had seen a decline 
in the sale of heavy goods it was considered that a similar situation must have 
been experienced by other stores affected by the partial pedestrianisation. 

• This belief was rejected by some Members of the Committee as they felt that the 
growth of online shopping and out of town retail parks was a more likely cause of 
the reduction in sale of larger heavy goods by a city centre retailer.  This view 
was supported by Mr Jones’ own company who regularly shipped out 100 orders 

14



COMMUNITY SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WEDNESDAY, 11TH JANUARY, 2006 

 
a day which had originated online.  Although it was noted that some people may 
not or could not shop online. 

• The Chairman noted that he had received a letter from the Widemarsh Street 
Traders who were in support of retaining pedestrianisation.  A copy of the letter 
was circulated to Members at the meeting. 

 
The Committee reviewed the evidence received from Ian Shackleton (Chave and 
Jackson), Bill Jackson (Estate Agent) and John Lewis (Left Bank Village).  The 
following are the principal points from the ensuing discussion: 
 

• A Member expressed the view that he supported the views of the witnesses in so 
far as: trade had reduced to the Left Bank Village; that a retail decline was being 
experienced in the Broad Street and King Street area; and that traffic congestion 
was terrible. 

• The Tourism Representative stated the decline in visitor numbers to the Left 
Bank Village was probably following the national trend of an overall decline in 
visitor numbers, rather than the pedestrianisation experiment. 

• It was stated that some people had difficulty in parking in the southern side of 
Hereford City Centre.  Therefore, as this side of town was considered to be a key 
site for tourists, consideration should be given to using loading bays in Broad 
Street for car parking. 

• The Chamber of Commerce Representative stated that a sign of good economic 
prosperity was city centre areas that were occupied by mixed businesses.  For 
example, retail and service companies.  Therefore it would be beneficial for the 
Broad Street and King Street areas to retain some retail outlets. 

 
The Committee reviewed the evidence received from the witnesses for the disabled 
sector, Jim Lawes (Access for All) and Anne Rolfe (Royal National College for the 
Blind).  The following are the principal points from the ensuing discussion. 
 

• The Committee noted Mr Lawes’ points with regard to disrespectful cyclists in 
Widemarsh Street during the hours when the road was closed to traffic and the 
problems which were being experienced by visually impaired people due to traffic 
exiting from Bewell Street and the new road surface on the corner of High Street. 

• A Member of the Committee stated that he felt the comments of the disabled 
users, in his opinion, questioned the validity of the entire pedestrianisation 
scheme. 

 
The Committee reviewed the evidence received from Lt Col Andrew Eames and 
Dominic Harbour from Hereford Cathedral, Cynthia Spaull, Hereford City Manager, 
and Jane Lewis, Acting Cultural Services Manager.  The Following are the principal 
points from the ensuing discussion: 
 

• The Committee noted the Three Choirs Festival was a good income generator for 
the City and that it should be supported. 

• Concern was expressed with regard to coach access to the Cathedral and the 
complaints of tour operators because of the difficulty of access caused by 
pedestrianisation. 

• The Committee were reminded of the pre-pedestrianisation complaints that 
coaches would overhang the pavement areas when driving through the city 
centre and cause a danger to pedestrians when they turned from Widemarsh 
Street into High Street. 

• The Head of Highways and Transportation informed the Committee that Tour 
Operator Organisations had been consulted and they had indicated that they 
were in favour of pedestrianisation.  He also informed the Committee that there 
were a number of ways which could improve access to the Cathedral but these 

15



COMMUNITY SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WEDNESDAY, 11TH JANUARY, 2006 

 
options were for the consideration of the Cabinet Member (Highways and 
Transportation) if it was decided that pedestrianisation should be retained. 

• The Chairman referred to a map which had been provided by Cynthia Spaull 
which illustrated the many congestion points in West Street. 

• The Director of Adult and Community Services clarified the information provided 
by the Acting Head of Cultural Services.  The Acting Head of Cultural Services 
had presented visitor figures for Hereford Museum from April-December which 
had shown an overall decline in visitor numbers from the previous year.  
However, if visitor figures for June-December were viewed, being the months 
when the pedestrianisation experiment was in place then an increase in visitor 
numbers was shown. 

 
The Chairman and Councillor B. Hunt circulated their proposed recommendations to 
the Committee. 
 
The Vice-Chairman proposed that, in view of the evidence heard, that the Committee 
supported some form of pedestrianisation in Widemarsh Street, Hereford.  This 
proposal was supported by a majority of Members present at the meeting. 
 
After a lengthy discussion the Committee adjourned to consider the proposed 
recommendations circulated by the Chairman and Councillor B. Hunt. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 3.55 p.m. and reconvened at 4.10 p.m. 
 
The Vice-Chairman proposed that, if the Cabinet Member (Highways and 
Transportation) approves a form of pedestrianisation in Widemarsh Street, Hereford, 
as proposed and supported by the Committee, that taxis, buses and coaches should 
not be granted special access.  This proposal was supported by a majority of 
Members present at the meeting. 
 
The Committee suggested that the Cabinet Member (Highways and Transportation) 
take into account the points and concerns which had been raised by Members during 
the discussion of the experiment to pedestrianise Widemarsh Street, Hereford. 
 
The Cabinet Member (Highways and Transportation) thanked the Committee for the 
way that it had looked at the emotive issue of the experiment to pedestrianise 
Widemarsh Street, Hereford.  He explained that the final decision would probably not 
please everyone but he felt that all means of consultation and debate had been 
exhausted.  His final decision would take these factors into account.  He thanked 
everyone who had taken part in the consultation or who had provided him with 
comments and stated that the final decision taken would be that which was best for 
Hereford. 
 
The Chairman reminded the Committee that if they disagreed with the decision of the 
Cabinet Member (Highways and Transportation) then they had the power to call-in 
the decision and review it. 
 
RESOLVED:   
 
That the Cabinet Member (Highways & Transportation) consider the range of 
views expressed by the Community Services Scrutiny Committee at its 
meeting on 11th January 2006 and reconvened on 13th January 2006, and has 
particular regard to its two principal conclusions, that: 
 
(a) the Committee supports a form of pedestrianisation in Widemarsh Street, 

Hereford; 
 

16



COMMUNITY SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WEDNESDAY, 11TH JANUARY, 2006 

 
and; 

 
(b) that taxis, buses and coaches should not be granted special access to 

Widemarsh Street if a form of pedestrianisation is approved. 
 
 

  
The meeting ended at 4.30 p.m. CHAIRMAN 
 

17



18



COMMUNITY SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 24TH MARCH 2006
  

Further information on the subject of this report is available from  
Jon Ralph, Community Youth Service Manager on 01432 38 3377 

 

 
RYouthService24030.06  

 COMMUNITY YOUTH SERVICE PARTNERSHIP 
ARRANGEMENTS WITH THE VOLUNTARY AND 
COMMUNITY YOUTH WORK SECTOR 

Report By: Community Youth Service Manager 

 

Wards Affected 

Countywide. 

Purpose 

1. To inform Members of the working relationship with the voluntary and community 
youth work sector and Herefordshire Council Youth Service.  

Financial Implications 

2.  There are no direct financial implications in this report 

Background 

3. Prior to the JAR inspection in 2006 the Youth Service was last reviewed by an 
external agency, De Montfort University, in 1998 on the creation of Herefordshire 
Council. The De Montfort report described the service as having: - poor strategic 
leadership, limited vision, inadequate resources and poor building stock. Work with 
the very small number of young people the service was working with (less than 3%) 
was described as: - poorly planned, unimaginative and without clear objectives. 
Overall the service was described as inadequate and that the local authority was 
failing in its duty to secure adequate provision for young people. 

4. In 1999/2000 the recommendations of the De Montfort Review were accepted and 
additional resources were allocated to the service, new management structures were 
adopted and the recruitment for an expanded staff team commenced in 2000/2001.  
The service also commenced the development of new partnership arrangements with 
the Voluntary Sector through the Youth Consortium. The service has been through a 
huge period of growth and change including establishing a new vision and ethos for 
the service, refurbishing it facilities, supporting the development of the Connexions 
Service and most recently the Every Child Matters (ECM) agenda. 

5. In October 2006 as part of the Joint Area Review (JAR) the Youth Service received 
and Ofsted inspection. The findings of the inspection showed improvement across all 
areas but with one notable exception ‘Curriculum and Resources’ and comment was 
made that: ‘There are insufficient staff and resources to provide a consistently high 
quality and broad curriculum’. Overall the service was rated as ‘adequate’ and was 
described as having ‘a balance of strengths and weaknesses’. 

 

6. Ofsted described the strengths of the Youth Service as: - 

AGENDA ITEM 7

19



COMMUNITY SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 24TH MARCH 2006
  

Further information on the subject of this report is available from  
Jon Ralph, Community Youth Service Manager on 01432 38 3377 

 

 
RYouthService24030.06  

a. Support for young people to take on new challenges and responsibilities is 
good 

b. A good range of accreditation is provided 

c. Staff are well involved in service development 

d. Training programmes are responsive 

e. Partnership arrangements are effective 

Ofsted described the Areas for development as: - 

• The involvement of young people in decision making at a county level is weak 

• Planning and evaluation of youth work is inconsistent 

• Curriculum leadership needs to be improved with clear guidance for youth 
workers 

• Greater rigour is required in quality assurance 

The Services Business Plan for 2006-7 has a detailed action plan highlighting 
resource implications to address the identified areas for development.  

7. Since 2003 Herefordshire Council has had a Partnership or Service Level Agreement 
(SLA) in place with Herefordshire Council for Voluntary Youth Services (HCVYS) the 
recognised local infrastructure organisation for the voluntary and community youth 
work organisations in the county. The SLA details the commitments and contributions 
that both organisations will put into the partnership.  

8. In 2005-6 the Youth Service contributed £52,032 (not including any funding from the 
Voluntary Sector Grants Panel) to the partnership to support youth work across the 
county, in return the local authority includes a percentage of the outcomes delivered 
through the partnership and the member organisations of HCVYS.  

9. Guidance from the Resourcing Excellent Youth Services (REYS) states that: ‘The 
spirit of REYS is to capture all the outcomes for young people secured through 
partnership working. Therefore if a youth service funds/supports e.g. a voluntary 
organisation or a Connexions partnership, then it should count its outcomes 
proportionate to the amount of the work supported.’  It is therefore not possible to 
claim a higher percentage of the outputs without contributing more to the partnership. 

10. The Ofsted inspector described the Youth Services partnership arrangements as 
‘effective’ and that they ‘support and complemented’ its work.  

 

RECOMMENDATION 

THAT the Committee note the partnership arrangements in place with the 
voluntary and community youth work sector. 

 

20



COMMUNITY SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 24TH MARCH 2006
  

Further information on the subject of this report is available from  
Jon Ralph, Community Youth Service Manager on 01432 38 3377 

 

 
RYouthService24030.06  

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

• OFSTED Enhanced Youth Inspection Report 2006 

• Community Youth Service Business Plan 2006-7 

21



22



COMMUNITY SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 24TH MARCH 2006
  

Further information on the subject of this report is available from  
Mick Ligema, Area Customer Services Manager on 01432 383292 

RKingtonLibrary24030.06  

 KINGTON LIBRARY 

Report By: Area Customer Services Manager 

 

Wards Affected 

 Castle, Bircher, Golden Cross with Weobley, Kington, Mortimer, Pembridge and 
Lyonshall with Titley 

Purpose 

1. To update Members on the progress being made in the refurbishment of Kington 
Library. 

Financial Implications 

2. There are no financial implications in this report. 

Background 

3. The refurbishment of Kington Library was approved in December 2004 based on the 
statutory requirement to meet the Disability Discrimination Act.  This also presented 
an opportunity to meet the priority of co-locating facilities on one site in a way of best 
utlising spaces and resources and best serving customer need.  As a consequence 
the refurbished site will include an Info facility. 

4. In addition the new facility will provide full access and facilities for people with 
disabilities; increased library floor space from 85 to 107 square metres; the co-
located Library/Info site will also have meeting rooms and a flexible space for 
community use; improved facilities for children, young people and special needs; as 
well as enabling better access and use of the resources of the Kington History 
Society.  This has been possible by better use of the space available including 
upstairs and enabled increased exposure of the historic aspects of the building. 

5. There has been a range of community consultation methods used in planning the 
project including: formally through planning consent; meeting with the Town Council 
on 18th July 2005; attendance at the AGM of the Kington Regeneration Company on 
28th September; as well as informing Members of the arrangements for providing 
temporary library provision. 

6. A temporary, portacabin library is situated in the Mill Street Car Park, and though 
taking a total of 39 car parking spaces, this has worked well for customers and staff 
in providing a consistent library service throught the development period.  

7. The timescale for the work is as follows: 

January to end September 2006 Site construction and refurbishment 
October 2006 Relocation of library from temporary facility 
November 2006 Re-opening of refurbished facility 

These timescales are subject to progress on the building project. 

AGENDA ITEM 8

23



COMMUNITY SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 24TH MARCH 2006
  

Further information on the subject of this report is available from  
Mick Ligema, Area Customer Services Manager on 01432 383292 

RKingtonLibrary24030.06  

8. At the inception of the Library refurbishment project the Kington Tourist Information 
Centre were offered space in the refurbished library facility.This was declined on the 
grounds that it would provide insufficient space for their needs and that they wished 
to keep the focus of their activities at the Mill Street are of Kington close to the bus 
station and car parks and adjacent to the Heritage Centre.The offer of space in the 
new facility was kept open until June 2005 when the TIC again confirmed that they 
did not wish to be part of the new library facility. 

RECOMMENDATION 

THAT the report be noted. 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

• Kington Library Refurbishment project notes. 

24



COMMUNITY SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE                                     24TH MARCH 2006 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from  
Andrew Hasler, Performance Improvement Manager on 01432 260655 

 PERFORMANCE MONITORING REPORT MARCH 2006 

Report By: Performance Improvement Manager 

 

Wards Affected 

 Countywide 

Purpose 

1. To report on the available Performance Indicators position and provide information about 
current performance management work within the Community Services Division within 
the Adult and Community Services Directorate. 

Financial Implications 

2. No direct implications 

Background 

3. The Performance Management Framework of the Council requires reporting to Scrutiny 
Committee at 4, 6, 8, 10 and 12 months.  This reporting format has been produced to 
provide coverage and commentary about a selection of Best Value and Local 
Performance Indicators, all of which are included within the Corporate Plan and are 
reported in line with the Annual Operating Plan requirements.  Issues, challenges and 
concerns relating to the Performance Indicators will be reported on an exception only 
basis, when activity levels are not in line with the planned targets. 

4.   The detail of the performance for each Service Block is given in the attached Appendices 
 

Other Performance Developments 

5. The final draft of the Economic and Community Services Divisional Plan has been 
submitted for quality assurance. This sets out the key priorities for the forthcoming year 
and how these will be achieved, in line with the Directorate and Corporate Performance 
Framework.  

 

RECOMMENDATION 

THAT  (a) the report on Community Services Performance be noted 

and 

 (b) Areas of concern continue to be monitored 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

• None Identified 

AGENDA ITEM 9

25



COMMUNITY SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE                                    24TH MARCH 2006 

 

Key 

BVPI = Best Value Performance Indicator 
 
Local PI = These are taken from Directorate and Service plans selected by Service Manager 

these can include LPSA indicators 
 
Out Turn = The previous Year End figures 
 
Target = Figure to be reached or exceed by the end of Year 
 
Quarters  
Actual Q1 = 1st April to 30th June 
Actual Q2 = 1st July to 30th September 
Actual Q3 = 1st October to 31st December 
Actual Q4 = 1st January to 31st March 
 
The Figures in the Actual Quarters column can be Percentages, Ratios or actual Numbers, 
these vary according to the definition of the Indicator. Where a Number is recorded this is the 
Cumulative figure for the latest Quarter. 
 
Status 

☺☺☺☺ = The Current Out-Turn Figure is equal to or greater than the Target figure 

���� = The Current Out-Turn Figure is less than the Target figure but an improvement on the 

previous years Out-Turn 

���� = The current Out-Turn figure is less than the previous years Out-Turn figure

26



COMMUNITY SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE                                    24TH MARCH 2006 

 

Appendix One – Social and Economic Regeneration 

Community Safety 

BVPI 
Local 

PI 
Definition 

04-05 
Out-turn 

Target 
Actual 

Q1 
Actual 

Q2 
Actual 

Q3 
Actual 

Q4 
Status 

 √ 
Alcohol related crime and disorder incidents in 
Herefordshire (between 20:00 and 06:00) 

2891 2217 735 1296 2064  � 

 LPSA Criminal damage incidents 2418 2101 666 1115 1786  � 
Life Long Learning 

BVPI 
Local 

PI 
Definition 

04-05 
Out-turn 

Target 
Actual 

Q1 
Actual 

Q2 
Actual 

Q3 
Actual 

Q4 
Status 

 √ 
200 learners enrolled through subcontract to 
Herefordshire Literacy project 

 
50 entry 
level 1 & 

2 
 24   � 

    
30 entry 
level 3 

 13   � 

    20 level 1  
12  Level 

2 
  ☺ 

 √ 
Learners engaged on Family Literacy, Language & 
Numeracy courses 183 180 109    ☺ 

 √ 

Learners engaged on first steps and OCN 
accredited courses  

450 ACL 
169 ESF 
500 ARCH* 

257 490   � 

Economic Regeneration 

BVPI 
Local 

PI 
Definition 

04-05 
Out-turn 

Target 
Actual 

Q1 
Actual 

Q2 
Actual 

Q3 
Actual 

Q4 
Status 

 √ 
No. of Commercial Property Inquiries Received 

248 250 65 94 147  � 

 √ 
No. of Business Start Up Grants Awarded 

75 60 22 29 36  � 

  
* Definitions Open College Network (OCN),  Adult and Community Learning (ACL), European Social Funding (ESF) Action for Regenerating Communities in Herefordshire (ARCH) 

2
7



COMMUNITY SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE                                    24TH MARCH 2006 

 

Success Stories 

Alcohol related crime and disorder:  
Following the introduction of the new licensing legislation in November 2005 the alcohol related 
crime and disorder incidents are down significantly on last year. Obviously it is too early to say 
what the long term impact of the new legislation will be, but it is hoped that this reduction in 
alcohol related incidents will be sustained. In addition the Alcohol Referral Project which refers 
people to the Community Alcohol Service has been introduced as a non-enforceable bail 
condition, which has lead to a huge increase in take up. Also, the Herefordshire Against Night time 
Disorder Scheme is being rolled out across Herefordshire, enforcing the ban from one ban from all 
initiative. 
Criminal Damage: 
We are now utilising LPSA2 funding to tackle anti-social behaviour across Herefordshire. One of 
the LPSA2 targets is to reduce criminal damage and work has started with the anti-social 
behaviour implementation group to map criminal damage hotspots across the County. It is 
anticipated that this mapping exercise will allow us to develop targeted campaigns in order to 
reduce criminal damage over the forthcoming 2 years (the duration of the LPSA2 funding). 

 
Issues, Challenges and Concerns 

Alcohol related crime and disorder: 
There is a risk that the reduction in alcohol related incidents could only be short term. It is 
estimated that the legislation will need to be in place for 12 months before the true picture is 
known.  

28



COMMUNITY SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE                                    24TH MARCH 2006 

 

Appendix Two – Parks and Countryside 

BVPI Local PI Definition 
04-05 
Out-
turn 

Target 
Actual 

Q1 
Actual 

Q2 
Actual 

Q3 
Actual 

Q4 
Status 

 √ 
% of people who use sports and 
leisure facilities at least once a 
month 

 
25% 

Measured on a 3 
yearly basis 

 75% 100%  ☺ 

 √ 

% of people who use parks, open 
spaces, play areas and other 
community recreational facilities 
at least once a month 

 
50% 

Measured on a 3 
yearly basis 

 147% 98%  ☺ 

 √ 
% of Council-owned or managed 
land without a nature conservation, 
managed for biodiversity 

0.33% 
0.35% 

Measured 
annually 

 0.33% 2.81%  � 

 √ 
% of FOI requests answered within 
the 20 day time limit 

100% 100% 100% 100% 100%  ☺ 
 √ 

% of appeals to the Information 
Commissioner that are upheld 

0% 0% 0% 0% 0%  ☺ 

 √ 

The level of the Equality Standard 
for Local Government to which the 
Authority conforms in respect of 
gender, race and disability 1 

1 
(Parks & 

Countryside 
compliant) 
Complete 

awaiting level 2 
target date 

1 
 

3 
 

4  ☺ 

 √ 
% Personal development plans in 
place and  
% of planned activity implemented 

100% 95% 93% 100% 97%  ☺ 

 √ 

The % of working days/shifts lost to 
sickness absence per full-time 
equivalent employees 
 

Not 
recorded 

7% 0.65% 10.57% 11.55%  ☺ 

178  

The % of Total length of Footpaths 
and Public Rights of way, which 
were easy to use by members of the 
public 

45% 47% 54.50% 54.50% 49.60%  ☺ 

2
9



30



COMMUNITY SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE                                    24TH MARCH 2006 

 

Success Stories 
 
Completion of North Herefordshire Swimming Pool and handover to HALO Leisure Trust. 

Completion of Phase 1b of Aylestone Park project (construction of entrance gate feature). 

Environment Agency consent obtained for decontamination of canal section of Aylestone Park. 

BVPI 178 C1 rises above 50% lower threshold (Public Rights of Way). The BVPI is calculated as the 
average of 2 randomly selected inspections of 2.5% of the network (one carried out in May 06, the 
other in November05) and is based upon criteria agreed by the County Surveyor's Society 

Indicator 
The proportion of relevant land and highways (expressed as a %) that is assessed as having 
combined deposits of litter and detritus that fall below an acceptable level; This LPSA2G indicator 
has now been moved from Parks & Countryside Service, and now is the responsibility of Area 
Highways Teams. 

 

Issues, Challenges and Concerns 

Budget pressures continue to be a challenge for the service.  

Hazardous Tree Survey identifies significant number of amenity trees in Hereford City that need 
remedial work. 

Electronic web based access to Rights of Way Modification Order Proposals has not been met within 
statutory timescale. 

 
 
 
 

31



COMMUNITY SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE                                    24TH MARCH 2006 

 

Appendix Three – Cultural Services 

BVPI 
Local 

PI 
Definition 

04-05 
Out-turn 

Target 
Actual 

Q1 
Actual 

Q2 
Actual 

Q3 
Actual 

Q4 
Status 

 √ % of targets met as listed in the Action Plan  90%  54% 69%  ☺ 

 √ 
Number of visitors to the tourist information 
centres. 
 

 317.000  233.895 484.116  ☺ 

170a  
Number of visits to and usage of 
museums/heritage centres per 1,000 population  
 

 820 231 501 1159  ☺ 

 √ 

Number of library visits per 1,000 population 
 

5177 

National 
6300 
Local 
5435  

 
4935 

 
4760  ☺ 

 √ 
Total number of usage in organised groups by 
pupils for: 

 7000 2678 3520 6637  ☺ 
  Outreach at schools not part of BV170C   842 1271 2428  ☺ 
  Museum on the move.   962 Nil 1709  ☺ 

170c  Visits to museums and galleries   874 1287   ☺ 
 √ % of people who use libraries at least once a 

month 
 Annual      

170b  Visits To and Use of Museums: visits in person   200 450   ☺ 
220  Compliance Against the Public Library Service 

Standards (PLSS) 
1 2  2 2  ☺ 

 

 

 

3
2



COMMUNITY SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE                                    24TH MARCH 2006 

 

Success Stories 

The Introduction of the sale of National Express tickets at the Tourist Information Centres in Hereford, 
Ledbury and Ross on Wye has generated sales amounting to £47,000 since April 2005 and this has 
generated £5,000 in commission for the Centres. 

Funding was secured by Herefordshire Tourism from Rivers Leader+ to develop Herefordshire as a Slow 
Food destination with a Food Festival planned for October 2006. 

The contract for the refurbishment of Kington Library began on schedule on January 6th and the 
temporary library facility opened in the portacabin in Mill Street also on schedule on January 24th. 
Current estimates for the refurbishment work suggest that subject to monitoring and review the 
contractor is on schedule with the building work. 
 

 
  

Issues, Challenges and Concerns 

No commentary submitted. 

 

33



34



COMMUNITY SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE                                    24TH MARCH 2006 

 

Appendix four – Diversity and Community Leisure Partnerships 

BVPI Local PI Definition 
04-05 

Out-turn 
Target 

Actual 
Q1 

Actual 
Q2 

Actual 
Q3 

Actual 
Q4 

Status 

 � 
Number taking part in the Sports Referral 
Programme 

38 48  69 80  ☺ 

 � 
% of existing LIFT Exercise Referral clients 
completing the programme. 

 45%  30% 58%  ☺ 

 � 
Number. of new referrals to the LIFT Exercise 
programme 

864 1050  380 660  ☺ 

 � 
Participants completing community based sports 
leaders awards and coach education 
programmes 

73 60  45 0  ☺ 

 � 
Number. of schools participating in the 
Herefordshire Youth Games 

23 25  23 0  � 

 � 
Number of people participating in the SHAPES 
programme 
 

- 250  162 230  ☺ 

 � 
Number of people completing qualifications 
(OCN & ICON)   

- 

20 
Target 
for July 

to March 

 0 0  � 

 � Number of people reporting health improvements - 

50 
Target 
for July 

to March 

 0 0  � 

 � Number of Walk Leaders Trained - 10  15 0  ☺ 

3
5



COMMUNITY SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE                                    24TH MARCH 2006 

 

Success Stories 

Sports Referral project still continuing to exceed expectations number of referrals well above 
target actual to date 118 – 38 clients currently involved in new activities. 

LIFT - 21 staff members completing the new National requirements and standards for exercise 
referral schemes. 

Shapes – OCN and ICON courses delivered, currently awaiting external verification of results. 

Shapes in Partnership with the PCT have set up a new Cardio rehab programme in Ross-on-wye  

 
 

 
 
 

Issues, Challenges and Concerns 

Difficulty in managing short term projects with external funding.             

 

 

 

36



COMMUNITY SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE                                    24TH MARCH 2006 

 

Appendix Five – Community Youth Service 

BVPI Local PI Definition 
04-05 

Out-turn 
Target 

Actual 
Q1 

Actual 
Q2 

Actual 
Q3 

Actual 
Q4 

Status 

 
KPI 
Contact 

13 – 19 yr olds performance to July 05 
 
 

12% 
(1,785) 

20% of youth 
pop aged 13 
–19 (2,966) 

4.6% 
(675) 

8.1% 
(1,194) 

12.7% 
(1,881) 

 � 

 
KPI 
Participation 

13 – 19 yr olds performance to July 05 
7.2% 

(1,068) 

12% of youth 
pop aged 13 
–19 (1,779) 

2.8% 
(408) 

4.8% 
(708) 

7.9% 
(1,170) 

 � 

221a 
KPI 
Recorded 
Outcomes 

13 – 19 yr olds performance to July 05 
57.6% 
(615) 

60% of 
Participants 

(1,076) 

9.3%  
(38) 

22.6% 
(160) 

33.2% 
(338) 

 � 

221b 
KPI 
Accredited 
Outcomes 

13 – 19 yr olds performance to July 05 
34.5 
(369) 

30% of 
Participants 

(533) 

6.9% 
(28) 

16.4% 
(116) 

25% 
(293) 

 � 

 � 

% of young people aged 13-19 who feel that 
the Council does enough to give young people 
the opportunity to influence important 
decisions 

03 -04 
survey 
13.8% 

25% 

19.2% 
'05 

Youth 
Survey 

   � 

 

Background 
The Community Youth Service is charged with delivering social and personal development for young people that results in educational 
outcomes.  It does this by providing a range of events, projects and activities that engage young people in a range of learning activities ranging 
from coracle building, and Skatepark development to girl and young women’s groups and media training projects. 

 
Performance 
The DFES (Department for Education and Skills) has set 22 ‘standards’ for all local authority youth services but has asked all local 
authorities to focus on 4 KPIs until 2006.  These 4 KPIs are: the number of young people the service is in CONTACT with, how 
many PARTICIPATE in the youth work curriculum, and of those that participate how many gain RECORDED or ACCREDITTED 
outcomes.  National targets have been set for these and all LA’s have been asked to show progression towards these targets over 
the three years end in 2006-7. 

3
7



COMMUNITY SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE                                    24TH MARCH 2006 

 

Success Stories 

The service received a Ofsted inspection as part of the JAR inspection in this period (full report 
available on request) the service was graded as adequate overall this was a good result for the 
service in light of the low resource base of the service. 

The launch of the Herefordshire Youth Council elections has been very well received by young 
people and will prove a major contribution to improving young peoples perspective of whether the 
council does enough to involve them in important decisions, the actual elections will take by text 
vote in the last qtr. 

 

Issues, Challenges and Concerns 

The service is unlikely to achieve its four DfES KPIs by the end of the year due to the low 
resource base of the service; this has been confirmed by the Ofsted inspection. 
The Ofsted inspection highlighted four areas for improvement for the Service, these will be 
addressed through the service Business Plan for 2006-7. 

 

38



COMMUNITY SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 24TH MARCH 2006
  

Further information on the subject of this report is available from  
Craig Goodall, Committee Officer (Scrutiny) on 01432 260445  

 

 
RMuseumScopeCoverReport0.doc  

 PROPOSED REVIEW OF SUPPORT FOR 
INDEPENDENT MUSEUMS AND HERITAGE CENTRES 

Report By: Acting Head of Community Services 

 

Wards Affected 

 Countywide 

Purpose 

1. To consider a scoping statement for a proposed review of the support for 
independent museums and heritage centres in the County. 

Financial Implications 

2. These are expected to be contained within existing budgets. 

Background 

3. At the Committee’s meeting on 13th June 2005 a suggestion was received that the 
Committee consider scrutinising museum provision within the County.  This 
suggestion was noted by the Committee and added to its work programme for 
2006/07 at its meeting on 14th December 2005. 

4. A suggested scoping statement for the review, which includes the proposed terms of 
reference for the review, is attached at Appendix 1 

5. If the Committee decide to approve the scoping statement and terms of reference for 
the Review it is suggested that the Committee appoint four Members to complete the 
Review. 

RECOMMENDATION 

THAT (a) the Scoping Statement for a review of the support for independent 
museums and heritage centres be agreed subject to any 
amendments the Committee would like to make; 

(b) the Committee appoint four Members to serve on the Review Group; 

and; 

(c) the Committee appoint a Chairman of the Review Group. 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

• None Identified 

AGENDA ITEM 10

39



40



 

REVIEW: Support for Independent Museums and Heritage Centres 

Committee: Community Services Scrutiny 
Committee 

Chair:  To Be Confirmed (TBC) 

Lead support officer: TBC 

 

SCOPING  

Terms of Reference 

An understanding of the role and purpose of museums and heritage centre run independently 
from the local authority 

An appraisal of their value in terms of local and regional provision 

Their context in connection with local authority run heritage centres and the City Museum 

Review of collections and assets held by the local authority and independent museums, including 
how objects are stored and accessed by the public 

An assessment of what support independent museums and heritage centres receive and 
additional support required  

 

Desired outcomes 

• To gain an understanding of the role of independent museums and heritage centres, including 
how they are run, what purpose they service for the wider community and their relation to 
similarly run local authority facilities 

• Recommend what additional, new support should be given to the independent museum and 
heritage centres and where that support should come from 

• Look at increased ways of linking local authority and independent facilities together to best 
use resources 

• Feed findings into the Heritage Strategy being produced for the County 

 

 

 

 

 

 

41



 

Key questions 

• What is the activity and purpose of the independent museums and heritage centres e.g. 
operating venues, holding collections, run education programmes 

• Is there a market for museums and heritage centres, and what are the audience figures and 
impact on tourism and community development 

• How are independent museums and heritage centres run e.g. volunteers, trusts status, part of 
a wider organisation, are facilities free, how is income raised 

• What current support is given, in kind and in cash 

• What are the links with Herefordshire Heritage Services and at a regional level Museums, 
Libraries and Archives 

• Are there ways the independent museums and heritage centres could work together to gain 
more 

• What are the areas of need to develop 

 
 

 
Corporate Plan Priorities 
 

 
To sustain vibrant and prosperous communities, by providing more efficient, effective and 
customer-focused services for communities, including clean streets 
 

 

 

Timetable (some of the facilities are only open seasonally and will influence the time table) 

Activity Timescale 

Agree approach, programme of 
consultation/research/provisional 
witnesses/dates 

July 06  

Collect current available data July to August 06 

Collect outstanding data September 06 

Analysis of data October 06 

Final confirmation of interviews of witnesses September 06 

Carry out programme of interviews October 06 

Agree programme of site visits July 06 

Undertake site visits as appropriate August and September 06 

42



 

Update to Community Services Scrutiny 
Committee 

October 06 

Final analysis of data and witness evidence November 06 

Prepare options/recommendations December 06  

Present Final report to Community Services 
Scrutiny Committee 

January 07 

Present options/recommendations to Cabinet February 07 

Cabinet response March 07 

Implementation of agreed recommendations April 07 onwards 

 
Members 

Support Officers 

  

Four Members of the Community Services 
Scrutiny Committee 

Lead Officer TBC 

 Craig Goodall – Committee Officer (Scrutiny) 

  

  

  

 

43



44


